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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES,REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSI 2022

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the

charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a

trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

The trust operates a multi academy trust (MAT) serving a catchment area in Cumbria and Lancashire. The MAT

comprises the following schools:

' Dallam School

Dallam school is a mixed, converter academy school with state boarding provision for pupils aged 11 to 19,

serving a catchment area in Milnthorpe and the surrounding area. lt has a pupil capacity of 1150 (increased

from 1050 from 01 September 2021) and had a roll of 1060 in the school census on 06 October 2022.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitutio n

The multi academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's

memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the multi academy trust.
The trustees of the South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company

for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is known as the South Westmorland Multi Academy

Trust.

The full board of trustees is responsible to the Secretary of State and to the school, its staff, pupils and parents

for the successful leadership and management of the school. A smaller group of trustees also act as the
trustees for the charitable activities of Dallam School Charitable Trust Limited and are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law.

Details of the trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on
page 1.

Members'Liabilitv
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in

the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,

such amount as may be required, not exceeding f 10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased

to be a member.

Trustee's lndemnities
The multi academy trust has purchased indemnity insurance to protect trustees and officers from claims arising

in connection with academy business.

Method of Recruitment and Apoointment or Election of Trustees

The trustees are appointed under the terms of the multi academy trust's articles of association as follows:
. Up to 10 trustees, appointed under Article 50

' A minimum of 2 Parent Trustees elected or appointed under Articles 53-56 in the event that no Local

Advisory Committees are established under Article 100a or if no provision is made for at least 2 Parent

Local Advisors on each established Local Advisory Committee pursuant to Article 101A.

. ln circumstances where the Trustees have not appointed Local Advisory Committees in respect of the

Academies as envisaged in Article 100a or if no provision is made for at least 2 Parent Local Advisors on

each established Local Advisory Committee pursuant to Article 101A there shall be a minimum of two
Parent Trustees and otherwise such number as the Members shall decide who shall be appointed or

elected in accordance with Articles 54 - 56.

. The total number of Trustees including the Accounting Officer if they so choose to act as Trustee under

Article 57 who are employees of the Academy Trust shall not exceed one third of the total number of

Trustees.
. Providing that the Accounting Officer aBrees so to act, the Members may by ordinary resolution appoint

the Accounting Officer as a Trustee.

' The Trustees may appoint Co-opted Trustees.
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SOUTH WESTMORI.AND MULT! ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Method of Recruitment and Aooointment or Election of Trustees (continued)

New trustees are recruited on the basis of the skills and competencies required to address gaps highlighted in
regular skills audits of the existing MAT board.

The term of office for all trustees is four years. The Accounting Officer is not appointed as a trustee. The
trustees who were in office at 31st August 2022 or who served throughout the period, except where shown,
are listed on page 1.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training ofTrustees.
During the period under review the trustees held 6 meetings. The South Westmorland MAT recognises that
new trustees do not necessarily have a background in education or a thorough understanding of the school. To

ensure they receive the necessary support to undertake their duties as soon as possible, the induction and
training process includes:

' A preliminary informal discussion with the Headteacher, and as necessary the Chair of the MAT or Local

Advisory Committee, to ensure they understand their general responsibilities and time commitment

' An induction meeting with the Headteacher, Chair of the MAT and Chair of the Local Advisory
Committee, to include a tour of the school

' An induction pack and initial training on the school systems and sources of information by the Clerk

' Assignment of a mentor from the existing Local Advisory Committee
. Regular training on developments in governance issues

' Annual training for each trustee related to their specific roles

Orpanisational Structure

The trustees are the charity trustees and are responsible for the general control and management of the
administration of the trust in accordance with the provisions set out in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association. The Board of Trustees is accountable for the performance of all academies within the trust and as

such must:
Ensure clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction
Hold the Academy Heads to account for the educational performance of the schools and their pupils, and the
performance management of staff
Oversee the financial performance of the trust and make sure its money is well spent

The Trust Board is permitted to exercise all the powers of the Academy Trust and delegates responsibility for
the day to day operations to the Accounting Officer. The Accounting Officer has the delegated responsibility
for the operation of the trust including the performance of the trust's academies and performance
management of the academy heads. Assistance is provided by the chairs of each Local Advisory Committee.

ln the role of Accounting Officer the Chief Executive Officer holds overall responsibility for the academy trust's
financial responsibilities and must ensure that the organisation is run with financial effectiveness and stability;
avoiding waste and securing value for money. As leader of the MAT's leadership team the Accounting Officer
can delegate executive management functions to the team and is responsible for their performance.

Arrangements for Setting Pav and Remuneration of Kev Management personnel

The MAT Board holds responsibility for setting the pay and remuneration of the academy's key management
personnel in accordance with the Pay Policy for Teachers, based on the format of the DfE's model policy and
NJC terms and conditions for support staff. Pay progression is based on an annual cycle running from lst
September to 31st August and is determined by achievement of pre determined performance objectives.
Responsibility for the appraisal process has been delegated to the Head Teachers pay Review Committee and
Pay Review Committees, both sub committees of the MAT Board. The MAT Board has delegated responsibility
for the appointment and performance management of the academy heads to the Accounting Officer through
the Scheme of Delegation.
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSI 2022

Trade union faciliw time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials

during the relevant period
Full-time equivalent employee number

3 2.8

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of emolovees
o% 0

7% - 50% 3

57% - 99% 0
700% 0

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time f1,800
Total pav bill f6,073,975
% of total pay bill spent on facility time 0.030%

Paid trade union activities

There was no paid union activity during the period

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Orsanisations
The multi academy trust is made up of the following schools:

. Dallam School

Dallam School supports the rationale that there is strength in partnerships and is a member of the South Lakes

Federation to bring rigour, challenge and a greater capacity for improvement. The collaborative federation is

made up of nine secondary schools, Kendal College and a special school within the South Lakes area, providing

an opportunity for curriculum enrichment, access for students to vocational courses and support for gifted and

talented students. A series of 'thresholds for performance' or benchmarks for attainment and progress of
students are set within the federation and support for improvement is provided where necessary.

Dalla m School is also a member of the South Lakes Rural Partnersh ip (SLRP), a group of second ary and primary

phase schools working as part of a wide ranging partnership with a focus on school improvement, service

provision, staff development, training, governance and leadership.

Dallam School benefits financially from Dallam School Charitable Trust, an unincorporated charity whose

objects include assisting the trustees to defray the costs of maintenance of the school, assist in providing

special benefits not normally provided by the DfE, and to promote the education of persons who are

attending/have attended the school.
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSr 2022

Objectives and Activities
Obiects and Aims

The main objects of the multi academy trust are:
' to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, by establishing, maintaining,

managing and developing schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum

' to promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of the areas in which the academies are situated the
provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation with the object of improving the
condition of life.

Obiectives. Stratesies and Activities
The main objectives for the year, the strategies for achieving them, and the key personnel and timeframes are
all detailed within the school improvement plan. Progress toward these targets was monitored through weekly
meetings of the senior leadership team. South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust monitored and evaluated
this progress through the Local Advisory Committee and regular Headteacher reports.

The priorities detailed in the School lmprovement Plan during 2027/22 were as follows:

5lP Priorities

An enhanced culture and ethos, based on a strong understanding of the vision, values and aims of the
' school, secures sustainable and measurable improvement in behaviour, attitudes, personal

development and wellbeing.
Engagement in Visible Learning + secures sustained improvement in learning and teaching. There is a

. coherent and consistent model of CPD, leading to improved outcomes for students, better student
engagement in learning, improved retention into sixth form and improved retention of staff.

. Sustained focus on recovery across the organisation to improve outcomes for students.

Quality of Education

' Re-focus on curriculum intent - new curriculum working group established which meets every two
weeks. lnput from the South Lakes Federation every term.

. Visible learning focus on curriculum implementation and impact.

' New network manager appointed - changes to ICT provision, including blended learning, under review.

' Changes to the curriculum structure, including the purchase of timetabling software to support more
efficient modelling and review of leadership and management time across the organisation.

Behaviour and Attitudes

. Behaviour Hub support engaged to refocus and restructure our behaviour rules and routines, ensuring
they are consistent, coherent and fit our vision, values and aims.

. Staff behaviour group established.

. House system re-launched.

Public Benefit
ln setting the objectives, the trustees have given careful consideration to the Charity Commission's general
guidance on public benefit and in particular to its supplementary public benefit guidance on advancing
education.
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SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULT! ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSI 2022

Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance

During the academic year 2027/22, Dallam School and SWMAT have made considerable progress towards the

SIP priorities in addition to those additional priorities generated by our mid-term review in February.

Progression is measured through the following local advisory committee meetings and LAC champions, which

provide both support and challenge to school leaders:

' Performance and evaluation committee (examination and performance data, pupil attendance and

recruitment)
. Safeguarding

. Curriculum

The South Westmorlond Multi Acodemy Trust ochievements in the yeor include:
. Building a recovery three- year budget plan after the impact of Brexit and Covid-19 on Boarding

. Supporting and securing the quality of education in Dallam School

. Monitoring and supporting the school throughout the Covid-19 pandemic and subsequent recovery

. Ensuring governance is well understood and effective

Dollom School ochievements in the yeor include:

Further improvement in teaching and learning through the implementation of Visible Learning and the
' development of Learner Dispositions

. Embedding the school vision, values and aims across all aspects of the school

. Successful home learning for pupils during Covid absence

. High quality support for the most vulnerable students, especially those who have experienced a loss of
social skills during Covid

. A structured and safe return to school for all students in September, securing the confidence of stafl
students, parents, and the wider community

. The recruitment of 61 boarders (full time and Dallam Experience) and the management of their return

to school

Kev Financial Performance lndicators

Dallam School

Staffing costs as a % of total income (excludins capital income)

2022 2027 2024 2079 20t8 2077

Teaching staff 52.8% 51.0% 54.to/a 48.7% 46.L% 46.8%

Support staff L9.7% 20.0% 2t.3% 22.2% 22.9% 24.O%

Total 7r.9% 7r.o% 75.4% 70.9% 69.O% 70.8%

Teachine Staff

2022 2027 2020 20L9 2018 20L7

Pupils on roll 1060 1082 1075 to24 972 956

Full time equivalents teachers 64 67 68 66 63 63

Pupil teacher ratio 16.6 16.1 15.8 15.5 15.4 75.2
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31AUGUST 2022

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the MAT Board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the multi
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason it adopts the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note of the financial statements.

Financial Review
The South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust's financial statements are for the year ended 31 August 2022.

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to have an impact on the Trust's ability to generate additional income
streams, particularly from its extended services provision of boarding, and community education and outdoor
education programmes. The organisation has relied on external providers to deliver adventurous learning
opportunities for students throughout the year, and community education classes have been delivered by
Lancaster and Morecambe College at the Milnthorpe and Heversham sites.

The Trust has continued to invest time and resource in exploring alternative markets for its boarding provision,
post Brexit and Covid. Recruitment of boarding students has been significantly better than expectations in the
5 year recovery plan, particularly for the Dallam Experience programme.

The Academy Trust ends the year in a very strong financial position based on an increase in the net current
assets to f7,753,192 (2O2L: f7,746,508). Trustees are mindful of the impact of the pension fund deficit on
future employer costs, and the need to regrow the boarding provision post Brexit and the Covid-19 pandemic.

The majority of each academy's income is obtained from the Educational and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in

the form of grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA

during the year ended 31 August 2022 and the related expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
statement of financial activities.

Dallam School is a state boarding school with 141 boarding places. A large proportion of its income is

generated from annual boarding fees.

Under Financial Reporting Standard 102, it is necessary to charge projected deficits on the Local Government
Pension Scheme, which is provided to support staff, to a restricted fund. This results in reducing reserves
shown in the total funds of the academy. lt should be noted that this does not present the academy with any
current liquidity problem. The employercontributions are currently being assessed and it is expected that they
will increase to bring a reduction in this pension deficit in future, although this may not be achieved until stock
market investment values start to recover.

During the period ended 31 August 2022, lotal general expenditure of f8,266,L43 was covered by recurrent
grant funding from the DfE together with other incoming resources. The excess of income over general
expenditure for the year was f766,236,

At 31 August 2022the net book value of fixed assets wasf17,547,701 and movements in tangible fixed assets
are shown in the notes to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing education
and the associated support services to the pupils of the Academy.
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSI 2022

COVID - 19 impact

Despite the upheaval caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, prudent spending and additional grant funding has

resulted in a significant increase in the year end surplus and a very healthy reserves level of f797,058.

Refurbishment work scheduled to take place over the summer break was severely hampered by a shortage of
materials and contractor availability. Trustees reco8nise that this contributed towards an increase in the level

of reserves carried forward and have agreed these funds will be drawn down in the next financial year as the

outstanding work is completed.

Staff employed in the organisation's extended services provision were furloughed, where possible and the
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme helped to mitigate the loss of income during periods of extended lockdown.

A successful application for business support grant funding was made to South Lakeland District Council to
support the closure of the community sports centre lettings.

Education support grants received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency were used to support student

catch up sessions for lost learning, the implementation of additional health and safety measures in the school

and the mass testing of students and staff to reduce viral transmission.

The financial sustainability of the organisation's extended services provision - boarding, sports centre lettings,

community and outdoor education - was challenged during the pandemic. The Trust recognises the positive

impact its extended services provision has on both the school and the wider community and has implemented

recoveryplanstoensurethefuturesuccessofallareasoftheprovision. Themeasuresbeingtakeninclude
exploring new markets, the creation of a new website, and working with external partners and agents.

Reserves Policv

The level of reserves held takes into account the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match

them with commitments, including future capital projects, and the nature of the reserves. The trustees

continue to keep the level of reserves under review.

The general unrestricted fund balance at the year end was f795,720 12027: f786,033). The trustees believe

that this level of reserves is required to support the running of the school. The designated sports fund at the
year end was f 178,281 (2027: f768,743), this fund is for the purchase of sports equipment and the resurfacing

of the all weather pitch.

The Trust aspires to hold reserves in the region of one month of annual expenditure to ensure it is able to
produce a three year balanced budget, support a staffing model commensurate with curriculum requirements

and maintain the Trust as a going concern in the event of unforeseen events, such as a pandemic. Trustees

acknowledge that although the reserves level of f797,058 held at 31st August 2022 exceeds their expectations,

this provides the security required to support the boarding provision and mitigate the boarding fund deficit

during the five year recovery plan.

Funds in Deficit

The trustees note that certain restricted funds are in deficit which have been disclosed in the funds note

supporting the financial statements.

Pension Reserve Fund - this fund represents the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) at the
year end. The academy has previously entered into an agreement effective from 01 April 2014 to make

additional contributions in addition to normal funding levels. lt is anticipated that further payments will be

made over 10 years from 01 April 2023.

Boarding Fund - Trustees approved a balanced three-year budget, with healthy reserves for the period to

3710812025. As a result of the exceptional circumstances arising from Brexit and the Covid-19 pandemic, the

Boarding Fund has been supported by a transfer of f100,000 from General Unrestricted Funds for the financial

period ended 3U0812022. A full review of boarding provision is ongoing, including the development of a

comprehensive marketing plan to explore new and additional markets, a staffing restructure, and a review of

charges apportioned to boarding. As a result of these measures, we aim to bring the fund out of deficit by

2026.
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SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31AUGUET 2022

Princioal Funding Sources

The main sources of income for the year were: The ESFA, boarding provision, the local authority, community
and outdoor education courses and the Dallam School Charitable Trust.

lnvestment Policv

The Board of Trustees aims to ensure value for money when considering investment decisions whilst exercising
caution and ensuring security of funds takes precedence over revenue maximisation. Any reserves are
currently held in a range of higher interest accounts with the multi academy trust's bankers. The main Lloyds
Bank account is an instant access account which currently attracts an interest rate of O.l% pa.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The major risks the multi academy trust is exposed to concern the real terms cut in funding by the Department
for Education. The multi academy trust mitigates these risks by preparing a 3 year budget forecast and closely
monitoring the budgetary position. The multi academy trust maintains a risk register which is monitored on a

termly basis by the Risk, Audit & Finance Committee, established by the trustees.

Financial and Risk Manasement Obiectives and Policies

A budget for the period was agreed prior to the beginning of the accounting period. Management accounts
were presented at each termly Risk, Audit & Finance Committee trustee meeting and income and expenditure
monitored against budget. All the MAT's financial policies, systems and controls are disclosed in the MAT's
Financial Regulations Manual.

Risk Management

The trustees have reviewed all major risks to which the MAT is exposed and systems have been established to
mitigatethose risks. A risk register has been produced, as per guidance in the Academy Trust Handbook which
demonstrates the results of the risk assessment process. The trust recognises and manages present and future
risk to ensure the effective and continued operation of Dallam School and will update its procedures
accordingly as and when additional academies join the MAT. A contingency and business continuity plan has

been prepared to deal with crises that could face the MAT. The MAT has effective systems of internal financial
controls and this is explained in more detail in the statement on internal control.

Fundraising

During the period in question the Trust has not engaged professional fundraisers or commercial participators
to undertake any fundraising activities on its behalf. The Trust has undertaken minor fundraising activities
which included a whole school sponsored walk, whereby students sought voluntary donations from parents,
carers and the local community. The development of a rigorous approach to external fundraising will be a

priority moving forwards.

Plans for Future Periods

The South Westmorlond Multi Acodemy Trust

Building a strong rapport with the Regional School Commissioner and other local partners to secure
. long term financial viability, joint procurement initiatives, the sharing of best practice and ultimately

improving student outcomes for all.

. Explore options for the growth of the SWMAT, taking advantage of the changing priorities within
Cumbria

. Explore opportunities for growing the trust through free schools (if and when funding is released)
specifically focused on Alternative Provision

' Continue to grow our boarding provision
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSr 2022

Pfans for Future Periods (continued I

Dollom School

To focus on moving the Quality of Education from good to outstanding, by further refining our

curriculum, ensuring consistent high-quality learning and teaching, and improving student outcomes

still further, including closing the attainment gap for PP studentt boys and students with high prior

attainment.
. To significantly improve the school culture and ethot by focusing on systems and routines that support

excellent behaviour, embedding our vision, values and aims and focusing on equality, diversity and

inclusion.
. To maintain our focus on staff and student wellbeing, through the wellbeing charter, including

prioritising mental and physical health, having a clear communications policy, ensuring students and

staff have a voice in decision making and reducing workload by streamlining systems and adhering to
the directed time agreement.

. To ensure financial stability with a rigorous business strategy, a clear improvement and development
plan for boarding and a focus on multi-academy trust growth that improves outcomes for young people

and families, and meets our vision, values and aims.

. To ensure boarding is financially viable and moving from 'good' to 'outstanding' against the new NMS

Funds Held on Behalf of Others
The multi academy trust acts as a intermediary for the 16-19 Bursary fund, but has no responsibility, the trust
distributes the funds to students as an agent for the ESFA.

Auditor
ln so far as the trustees are aware:
. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and
. the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Saint & Co Chartered Accountants were formally re-appointed by the Members at a meeting of the Trust held

on 15th December 2022.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the members of the board of
trustees on 15th December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Trustees
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Scope of Responsibility
As trustees, we acknowledge that we have overall responsibility for ensuring that the South Westmorland Multi
Academy Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the accounting officer, for ensuring financial
controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with
the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between the South Westmorland
Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board
of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees'Report and in the
Statement of Trustees'Responsibilities. The MAT Board has formally met 6 times during the year. Attendance
during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustee

Ms R T Williams (Headteacher & Accounting Officer)

MrsEJFraser(Chair)

Mr A J Gerrard (Vice Chair)

Mrs P A Houghton

Dr AJ Knox

Mrs J Lees

MrJ Moffat

Mr M J Shevill

Mrs S C Swindley (Vice Chair - resigned 761t2/212tl

Mr R T Villiers-Smith

Governance Review

Out of a Possible

6

5

6

3

6

7

5

I
4

6

6

6

6

6

6

3

6

2

6

Key chonges in the composition ofthe Boord ofTrustees
Whilst the Board has lost a recent appointee due to their work load, we continue to benefit from Trustees with
significant experience in education and Trustees with wide experience in business and the medical profession. The
Chair of the Dallam School Local Advisory Committee (l-AC) who was appointed as a Trustee last year, has now
assumed the role of Chair of Trustee Board having relinquished his role on the LAC. The Board is actively seeking a

new Trustee to fill the current vacancy. The Board continues to work well together, unafraid of differences of
opinion and prepared to express strong views in a respectful and collegiate manner.

The coveroge of its work
Following an easing of the Covid pandemic the MAT Board felt it appropriate to explore growth options for the
MAT. ln March 2022, representatives from the MAT and LAC Boards, together with governors from other schools
in the South Lakes Federation, met with the RSC to explore interest in establishing a MAT incorporating schools
from within the SLF. Since then, Heads have continued those discussions and Governing Bodies have discussed the
proposal. Further meetings are planned in the near future.

Meetings Attended
6
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The coveroge of its work (continued)

Following the resignation of the Deputy Head of Dallam School, the MAT Board has approved a change in senior

leadership structure to reflect the complexities at the school. lt is proposed to appoint two Deputy Heads instead

of the previous one. Trustees have supported the shortlisting and interview process for these posts. ln the interim,
Trustees approved the appointment of temporary posts at Associate Assistant Head levels internally.

Across the financial year, the Board, working closely with senior officers, fulfilled its duty in ensuring financial
probity. The continued impact of the pandemic on Boarding and Extended Services has been a particular focus.

Regular updates on boarding recruitment and marketing activity have been provided to trustees and discussed in

detail.

The Board has agreed the new Dallam School vision developed by the senior leadership team with input from the
whole school community. The Board has closely monitored all aspects of Dallam School's work supporting key
initiatives: Visible Learning; Behaviour with support from the Department for Education Behaviour Hubs
programme; and Wellbeing of staff and students.

l-AC Champion roles established last year are firmly in place and reports are published 2 or 3 times a term for
discussion at LAC meetings and circulation to the MAT Board.

The boord's performonce, including ossessment of its own effectiveness ond ony porticulor chollenges thot hove

orisen for the Boord
MAT Board and LAC meetings are now mostly held face to face; virtual Board meetings are still held on occasions

where appropriate to reduce the load on staff and Trustees. lndividual trustee review meetings are held and a

skills audit was also undertaken which, together, informed recruitment and training needs. A 360-degree

assessment of the chair was positive, with trustees noting the many strengths of the Board. Members work
effectively together without any sense of cosiness or complacency - in fact the opposite, trustees are active,

interested, questioning and supportive.

A peer review of Governance from within the South Lakes Federation was completed and reported to the MAT

Board. Amongst many positive observations, a few areas were identified where governance could be further
improved and these will be part of our Governance Development Plan.

The Governor Hub central online portal is being used by most MAT Board and IAC members; those notyet using it
have been encouraged to do so.

lnformotion obout the quolity ol the doto used by the boord, ond why the boord finds it occeptoble
The quality of data provided to the Board and the Dallam Local Advisory Committee has continued to improve over

the last year. How Dallam School performance data is presented is under review in an effort to improve clarity and

reduce workload on staff members. Safeguarding and other internal reports such as Pupil Premium reports are

now delivered using a standard format adopted from best practice documents available from Government or other
external sources.

A clear School lmprovement Plan for Dallam School with clear objectives and impact measures is in place. Feedback

from the Headteacher at all meetings is comprehensive and straightfonarard.

The presentation of financial data includes comprehensive summaries of changes made, clear reasons for changes

and benchmarking against DfE KPls. ln facing the financial challenges of Boarding and other services, the Board was

very well advised by the CFO, with clear options and including worst case scenarios. Risk Registers for the South

Westmorland MAT and Dallam School are in place which are regularly reviewed and risk assessments are provided

on a regular basis so that the Board can make informed decisions. Audits are also undertaken to check financial

systems of internal control and risk management/non-financial controls, with reports provided for review by the

Board.
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Board has ensured that it has met regularly and the data it has used over the last year has therefore always
been up to date. Communication between trustees and senior officers has been very good; the Board of Trustees
met with officers 6 times between the 1st September and the 31st August. An additional mid-year meeting
between the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board and the Board's Members also took place. ln total over 30
meetings/training sessions took place across the course of the year.

Conflids ol interest
The Academy Trust has a number of processes in place to manage conflicts of interest. These include:
' The work of the Pay Review Committee to consider decisions about executive pay and benefits
' Recording trustees declaration of interest in meeting agenda items

Maintaining an up-to-date and complete register of interests, documented on the trust website and shared
' with finance staff to check before entering into contracts or procuring goods for the organisation

' Ensure goods or services provided by related parties are at no more than cost

Meetings
To ensure trustees and senior leaders maintain robust oversight of the academy trust, and take full responsibility
for its financial affairs, stewardship of assets and use of resources efficiently to maximise outcomes for students,

the Trust Board sets an annual calendar of meetings. During the 202U22 financial year the Trust Board met a total
of 6 times during the year and the Risk, Audit & Finance Committee met 3 times.

The Risk, Audit and Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the MAT Board. lts purpose is to assist the decision
making of the board of trustees by ensuring sound management of the multi academy trust's finances, resources,
systems of internal control and risk profile, including proper planning, monitoring and probity. Attendance at
meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee
Mrs S C Swindley (Chair - resigned L6/7212O27)

Mrs E J Fraser

Ms R T Williams (Headteacher & Accounting Officer)
Mrs J Lees

Mr M J Shevill
Mr R T Villiers-Smith (Chair)

Review of Value for Money

Meetings Attended Out of a Possible

As Accounting Officer the chief executive has responsibility for ensuring that the multi academy trust delivers good

value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the MAT Board where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the multi academy trust has delivered improved
value for money during the year by:

During the 2027 - 22 academic and financial year the South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust has undertaken a

number of initiatives to derive greater value for money from its operations whilst also ensuring it provides the best
possible outcomes for its students. Below a number of areas are highlighted along with specific examples of how
the trust has addressed each.

lmproving educational outcomes - the Trust has focussed on targeted improvement linked to the School
lmprovement Plan to ensure maximum impact on outcomes for students in a number of key areas. Specific
strategies include an enhanced culture and ethos to secure sustainable improvement in behaviour and attitudes,
and engagement in the Visible Learning programme to improve the quality of teaching and learning.
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Review of Value for Money (continued)

Financial Governance and Oversight - the Trustees have strong oversight of the financial management of the MAT's

budgets. The Risk, Audit and Finance Committee meet termly to review the financial position of the MAT, to

receive reports and challenge decisions, before reportinB to the full board. ln addition to the annual external audit,

a separate firm of auditors were engaged to conduct an internal audit of financial controls, and an internal audit of

non-financial controls and risk management was carried out via a peer review, in accordance with best practice.

Evidence of the MAT's ethos of obtaining value for money and adherence to systems of internal control is provided

in their termly reports submitted for scrutiny to the Risk, Audit and Finance Committee.

Ensuring efficient and effective use of resources - the Trust ensures there is a continual focus on best value for
money and understands how assets can be used to maximise students' progress and outcomes. The Chief Finance

Officer takes care to ensure all purchases and contracts deliver value for money, using tendering to obtain at least

three quotes and challenging any item which does not deliver a clear benefit. Dallam School continues to work
with other local schools in the South Lakes Federation to undertake cost comparisons, particularly of contracted

services, which ensures value for money. The Chief Finance Officer is a member of a local network of SBMs who
meet regularly to discuss issues affecting schools and to initiate procurement advantages where possible.

Reviewing controls and managing risks - the Risk Register is reviewed on a regular basis by the Risk, Audit and

FinanceCommitteetoassessthelikelihoodandimpactof risksandhowthesecanbemitigated. TheChief Finance

Officer and Accountant review the budget and costs on a monthly basis and submit detailed reports to trustees.

Any significant variances and, in particular, changes to staffing costs are highlighted and addressed. Changes to
staff contracts are carefully planned and overseen by the Accounting Officer and any agreed increments endorsed
by the Trust Board within the scope of the delegated responsibilities.

The Trust has continued to offer support to suppliers during the pandemic, where possible, in order to ensure

continuity of service after periods of extended lockdown. However, most provision has run smoothly without
disruption. The exception has been our in-house caterinB provision which provided a limited service until it fully re-

opened after October half term. This adversely impacted on our ability to deliver value for money.

COVID - 19 impact
As highlighted under Section 3 above, The Board and its sub-committees have continued to meet virtually during

the Covid-l9 pandemic. There has been an increased number of meetings to ensure the Board has been able to
fully discharge its core governance responsibilities. lnternal audits, for example, have stilltaken place in school as

opposed to virtually with reports provided for MAT Board review and discussion. Management accounts have been

produced and reviewed monthly and the risk registers have also continued to be updated and regularly reviewed.

Balancing the focus on health and safety matters with continuing school improvement has been a challenge,

however this has been a challenge to which all Board members and Local Advisory Committee members have risen.

The Purpose of the System of lnternal Contro!
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and

prioritise the risks to the achievement of the MAT's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those

risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and

economically. The system of internal control has been in place in the South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust for
the year ended 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The Trust identifies risks, with reference to its risk register, and modifies its checla accordingly. Where procedures

or systems have changed, such as in the boarding provision, additional meetings have been convened to ensure a

suitable level of scrutiny is applied.
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SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULT! ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the MAT is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is of
the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy's significant
risks that has been in place for the year ended 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework
The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. ln particular, it includes:
' Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports

which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;
' Regular reviews by the Risk, Audit and Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
. Setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
. Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
. Delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
. ldentification and management of risks.

!nternal Scrutiny
The board of trustees are aware of the revised FRC Ethical Standard for auditors which states that a firm providing
external audit to an entity shall not also provide internal audit services to it. They have therefore considered the
need for a specific internal audit function and appointed an internal auditor to scrutinise and report on the systems
of financial control for the year ended 31 August 2022.

ln addition, internal scrutiny of risk management and non-financial controls was delivered via a peer review by the
former chief financial officer from another academy trust. The Trust appointed Steven Holmes, former Chief
Financial Officer of the Lunesdale Learning Trust to conduct the review, based on his independence from the Trust
and experience.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust's financial systems. Checks carried out in the current period included:

. testing of payroll systems;

. testing of purchases systems;
' testing of bank reconciliations

On a termly basis the internal auditor reports to the Risk, Audit and Finance Committee on the operation of the
systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees' financial responsibilities.

The board of trustees confirm that the internal auditor has worked with the Trust to deliver their schedule of work
despite the issues arising from the Covid-19 pandemic.
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Review of Efftctiveness

The accounting officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During

the year in question the review has been informed by:

' The work of the peer reviewer;
' The work of the internal auditor
' The work of the external auditor
. The financial management and governance self-assessment process

. The work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Risk, Audit and Finance Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the systems is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 15th December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Academy Trustees
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SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULT! ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT ON REGULARIW, PROPR!ETY AND COMPLIANCE

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

As accounting officer of South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the
Trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and

non+ompliance with terms and conditions of funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreement in place

between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to
the requirements of the Academies Trust Handbook202t.

I confirm that I and the Trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all

funds by the Trust, or material non<ompliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding
agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2021.

I can confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non+ompliance have been

discovered and notified to the board of trustees, ESFA and Action Fraud UK. lf any additional instances are identified
after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA:

- Financial lssues

A sum of f-L,776 was paid incorrectly into a fraudulent bank account as a result of a security breach on a

suppliers bank account and subsequent phishing emails. This occurred on 22h012027.

The Trust referred this matter to the external auditor, ESFA and Action Fraud UK, and confirm that they have

reviewed their systems of internal control and strengthened them further to reduce the risk of this happening

again,

Signed:

Mr SJ Henneberry
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MU LTI ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSTBITIT!ES

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are

responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies

Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including

its income and expenditure, forthat period. ln preparing these financial statements, thetrustees are required to:

a

a

a

a

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2O2Lto
2022

make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management.
They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied forthe purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and

dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Academy Trustees

/s- tL-LL Date
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SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE

MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMYTRUST

YEAR ENDED 3l AUGUST 2022

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust for the year ended 3l August
2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has

been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

ln our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 3l August 2022 and of its incoming

resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2021

to2022.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK) (lSAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

ln auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12 months from when the financial statements are

authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

(Xher information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report including the trustees' report, other
than the financial statements and our auditor/s report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual report. lt includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Report of the Directors

and Strategic Report and the Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent othenrtrise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated. lf we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. lf, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MUTTI ACADEMY TRUST

!NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE

MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH WESTMORLAND MUTTIACADEMYTRUST (continued)

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSr 2022

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the Report of the Trustees have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

ln the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us

to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is

necessary to enable to preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern

basis of accountinB unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE

MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULTIACADEMYTRUST (continued)

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the lndependent Auditors that includes
our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a Buarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
lSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with
laws and regulations, is detailed below:

. the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

. we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and other
management;

. we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the financial
statements or the operations of the company;

o we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of
management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

. identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert
to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining an

understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

. making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge
of actual, suspected and alleged fraud;

. To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:
. performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
. tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;
. assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in the

accounting policies were indicative of potential bias; and

. investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

ln response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which
included, but were not limited to:

o agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
o reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;
. enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and regulations
are from financial transactiont the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance. Auditing standards
also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the
directors and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may
involve deliberate concealment or collusion.
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE

MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULTIACADEMYTRUST (continued)

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors

report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part t6 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's

members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest

extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and

the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
The Old Police Station
Church Street
Ambleside
Cumbria
LA22 OBT

I f .*au./ub*f ,h.6^r"

-.{
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGUIARITY TO THE SOUTH

WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDTNG AGENCY

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

ln accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 21106/2018 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2O2Lto 2022, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received
by the South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust during the period 01 September 2O2lto 31 August 2022 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

Respective Responsibilities of the South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust's Accounting Officer and the Reporting
Accountant
The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirement of the South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 01 August 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook,
extant from I September 2027, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and

are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 202\ to 2022.We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period
01 September 2027 to 31 August 2022have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA . We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in orderto provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

. the school resource management self-assessment checklist (SRMSAT) was obtained and considered;

. responses to the top 10 'musts' for chairs and other trustees from the AFH was obtained and considered;

. having a general awareness of regularity and propriety whilst conducting the statutory audit function;

. reviewing if extra-contractual severance payments have been made in accordance with the Handbook;

. reviewing if borrowing agreements, including leases to ensure they have been made in accordance with the
Handbook;

. reviewingthe minutesof the meetingof the main committees duringtheyear;

. reviewing expenditure to check that it was not ultra vires to the charitable objectives;

. obtaining trustee / governors declaration of interests;

. where present obtaining the accounting officer's file.
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTTNG ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGUIARTTY TO THE SOUTH

WESTMORTAND MUTTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILTS FUNDING AGENCY

YEAR ENDED 31AUGUST 2022

Conclusion

ln the course of our work, except for the matters listed below nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in
all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 01 September 2O2Lto 31 August

2022has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Matter 1:

As referred to within the Accounting Officer's Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance there was an

identified fraudulent transaction during the year. A sum of f 1,775 was paid incorrectly into a fraudulent bank account

as a result of a security breach on a suppliers bank account and subsequent phishing emails. This occurred on

22/7012027.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our

engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust

and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted

by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than South Westmorland Multi Academy Trust and

ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

For and on behalf of

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
The Old Police Station
Church Street

Ambleside
Cumbria
LA22 OBT

Kk*beL.fuL-...Date

(Senior Statutory Auditor)
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF FtNANCtAt ACTTVTTIES (tNCORPORATTNG THE TNCOME AND EXPENDTTURE ACCOUNT)

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Unrestricted Restricted
Funds General

Funds

Note e. E

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds

€

561,820

Year
Ended

31 Aug 22

E

669,575

7,7L6,327

7,082,377
725,632

300

Year
Ended

31 Aug 21

e

677,458

7,0L7 ,428

7,729,661
92,465

228

lncome and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants

Ch oritoble activities :

- Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations
- Provision of boarding activities

Other trading activities
lnvestment income
Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Choritoble octivities :

- Academy trust educational operations
- Provision of boarding activities

Total

Net income / (expenditure)
before transfers
Transfers between funds
Net Income/(expenditure) for the year

Other recognised gains/ (losses)

Actuarial (losses) gains on defined benefit
pension scheme

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought fonvard at 01 September 2021

Total funds carried
forward at 31 August 2022

488,726 7,944,253 561,820

3

28

4

5

8

8128

6

107,755

254,439

725,632
300

6,861,882

r,082,371

L07,846

281,330 6,937,736
- 939,831

to7,846

873,s82 8,092,048
599,191 7,539,022

8,994,199 8,9t7,240

112,080

7,352,63r
1,385,048
8,849,7s9389,776 7,876,967 t,472,773 9,738,9L6

98,9s0 67,286 (e10,9s3) (7M,777]. 67,48t

18,62s (183,ses) (s79,747l. (744,7L71 67,48t

L7122 - 3,804,000 - 3,804,000
18,62s 3,620,4Os 1s79,747l. 3,059,283

7,677,780

(420,000)
(3s2,s19)

8,030,299

-try

3s4,776 (4,466,3791 L7,789,383

373,401 l84s,974l. L7,209,636 L0,737,063

All of the academy's activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods.

A Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses is not required as allthe gains and losses are included in the Statement of
Financial Activities.
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SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

BALANCE SHEET

31 AUGUST 2022
2022

f

11,547,70t

Note C

L2

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Stock
Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

tiabilities
Creditors: amount falling due within one year

Net current assets
Total Assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amount falling due after more than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total Net Assets

Funds of the academy trust :

Restricted funds
Fixed asset funds
General funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

General funds
Total unrestricted funds
Total funds

13 4,766
74 1,505,051

7,597,069
3,106,886

1s (1,9s3,594)

L,753,792
72,700,993

16 (604,830)

12,096,063

22 (1,3s9,000)

70,737,063

77 t1,209,636
77 573,026
77 (1,359,000)

77 70,363,662

77 373,407
373,401

70,737,063

202L
ff

72,767,347

3,475
1,476,297

7,357,663
2,777,435

(L,630,9271

1,146,508
13,313,855

(805,07s)

12,507,780
(4,830,000)

7,677,78O

\1,789,383
363,621

(4,830,000)

7,323,004

354,776
354,776

7,677,780

The financial statements were approved by the governors, and authorised for issue on lS..AUllnttt{..&OZ"na
signed on their behalf by: U

Registration Number: 07646748

Page 27



SOUTH WESTMOR1AND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASHFTOWS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Reconciliation of net income / (expenditure) to net cashflow from operating activities

Net income / (expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial
activities)

Adjusted for:
lnterest receivable
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Depreciation
Capital grants from DfElESFA

lnterest on finance lease rental payments
Decrease/(increase) in stocks

Decrease/(increase) in debtors
lncrease/(decrease) i n creditors
Decrease/(increase) in salix loans included in above
Defined benefit pension scheme costs less contributions payable.

Defined benefit pension scheme net finance costs
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

Cashf Iows from investing activities
Receipts from sale oftangible fixed assets
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA

lnterest received
lnterest on finance lease rental payments
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities

Cashf lows from f inancint activities
Receipts from Salix loans
Repayments made on Salix loans

Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities

lncrease / (Decrease) in cash in the year

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
lncrease/(decrease) in cash in the period
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2021
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2022

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank
Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash

Loans falling due within one year
Loans falling due after more than a year
Finance lease obligations
Tota!

Year
Ended

3L Aug22
f

(744,777)

(3oo)

673,284
(ss1,820)

96,382

17,29Ll
(88,7s4)

315,840

5,19s
244,000
89,000

Year

Ended

31 Aug 21
f

67,487

(228)

667,ggg
(s74,4s81

96,392
(180)

(58,295)
(4s4,s27l,

(84,s91)

155,000

83,000
( 102,528)

1 Sep 2021

f.

1,357,663
(4,3291

1Lo9,757)
(89O,627)

352,9N

Cash flows

f
239,406

5,195

194,3 18

239,406

239,406
L,357,663
l,5g7,069

Cash flows
f

239,406
239,406

Other non-

cash changes
E

(6,927)

6,927

266,049

266,049
L,091,614
L,357,663

3L Aug2O22
f

1.,597,069

1,,597,069

3L Aug2O22

C

1,597,069
(5,051)

(102,840)
(695,309)
791,g59

(s3,638)

551,820
300

(96,382)

(s,19s)
(194,318)

1 Sep 2021
E

7,357,663
1,357,663

New

agreements
c.

36,819

402,700

(199,s13)

574,458
228

(96,382)
479,3U

87,845
(3,2s4l.

( 194,318)
(L09,727)

438,919
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SOUTH WESTMORI.AND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSI 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),

judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

General lnformation
The academy trust is a public benefit entity and a private company limited by guarantee, registered in England and

Wales and is an exempt charity. The address of the registered office is Dallam School, Milnthorpe, Cumbria, LA7 7DD.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the entity.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared

under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and

Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice

applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 lo 2022

issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern
The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going

concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation

for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's

ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing

the financial statements.

lncoming resources

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable

and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants receivable
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received

for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.

Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional

entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the
performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is

accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is

receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of

capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised

when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance.related conditions) where the

receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31AUGUST 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (Continued)

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services
Donated goods, facilities and services. Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected
proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale. lf it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is

recognised in stock and 'lncome from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against
'lncome from other trading activities' and the proceeds are recognised as 'lncome from other trading activities'.
Where it is impractical to fairvalue the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the
financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'lncome from other trading activities'.

Donated fixed assets

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from
donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over
the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Deferred income
Grants and other funding received for the Academy's educational activities for a period spanning the year end are
deferred pro-rata to the relevant periods in order to match the funding to the period in which the costs of charitable
activities are incurred.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the
total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs
attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one
activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on
a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on Raising Funds

This includes all expenditure incurred bythe academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes
costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating
to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are exclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSI 2022

1. Statement of Accountint Policies lContinued I

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets transferred on conversion to Academy status have been included in the accounts at valuation.

Land and buildings are classed as long leasehold if there is over 50 years unexpired lease term at the balance sheet

date.

Tangible fixed assets since the Academy was established are included in the accounts at cost, net of depreciation and

any provision for impairment.

Single assets costing less than f2,000 or similar groups of assets purchased or ordered together of less than f2,000
are written off in the year of purchase.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from
the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful

economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset,

the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried
forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds,

depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual value, over the useful

economic life of that asset as follows:

Freehold buildings
Long leasehold buildings
Long leasehold land

Short leasehold land & buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture and equipment
ICT equipment
Motor vehicles

- straight line over the estimated economic lite (24 to 53 years)
- straight line over the estimated economic life (31 to 60 years)
- straight line over the remaining life of the lease
- straight line over the remaining life of the lease
- straight line over the estimated economic life (10 to 32 years)

- straight line over 5 years
- straight line over 4 years
- 25% reducing balance

Assets in the course of construction are included at cosU depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are

brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

valueofanyfixedassetmaynotberecoverable. Shortfallsbetweenthecarryingvalueoffixedassetsandtheir
recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. lmpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial

Activities.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The total depreciation charge is allocated to direct costs and support costs pro-rata to the number of employees.

A full years depreciation is charged in the year of purchase and no charge is made in the year of disposal.
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSI 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies lContinuedl

Ihbilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is

probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be

estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the
debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Public Benefit Entity Concessionary Loans

Public benefit entity concessionary loans shall initially be measured at the amount received and recognised in the
statement of financial position. ln subsequent years, the carrying amount of concessionary loans in the financial
statements shall be adjusted to reflect any accrued interest payable.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event
which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the
pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised with in
interest payable and similar charges.

Finance lease agreements
Where the academy enters into a lease which entails taking substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an

asset, the lease is treated as a finance lease. The asset is recorded in the balance sheet as a tangible fixed asset and is

depreciated in accordance with the above depreciation policies. Future instalments under such leaseg net of finance
charges, are included within creditors. Rentals payable are apportioned between the finance element, which is

charged to the SOFA at a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital repayments outstanding, and the capital
element which reduces the outstanding obligation for future instalments.

Leased assets

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership remain with the
lessor are charged against profits on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Financia! !nstruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial
liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Finonciol ossets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost as detailed in the notes. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Finonciol liobilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost as detailed in the notes. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments
disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already
taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stock
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowance for obsolete and slow
moving items.
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SOUTH WESTMORIAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSI 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies lContinuedl

Taxation
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and

therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK taxation purposes.

Accordingly the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received

within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 255 of the Taxation of

Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Pensions Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS') and

the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are held

separately from those of the academy trust.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees'

working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentaBe of current
and f uture pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial

valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multiemployer scheme with no underlying

assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured

on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate

of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations

are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net

income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,

settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined

benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprisesthe interest cost on the

defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the

scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference

between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other

recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted funds reflect those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the objects of the Academy at

the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted flxed asset funds reflect the fixed assets and capital grants for the purchase of fixed assets to be used for

charitable purposes.

Restricted general funds comprise grants, including the General Annual Grant (GAG), and other funding for

educational purposes and any voluntary income to be used for specific purposes.

The Local Government Pension Scheme deficit is recognised against restricted general funds in order to match it
against the GAG, in accordance with ESFA guidance.

Details of restricted and unrestricted funds are shown in the notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSI 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies lContinuedl

Agency Arrangements
The academy trust acts as an aBent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from EFA and
subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the trust does not
have control over the charitable application of the funds. The trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its

own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid

and any balances held are disclosed in the notes.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Criticol occounting estimotes, ossumptions o nd judgements

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

. The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in

determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in the notet will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has

been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 3L August 2022. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the
pension liability.

. The annual depreciation charge is sensitive to the estimated useful economic lives of property. The useful
economic lives of property, plant and equipment is initially based on the professional valuers report using their
judgement and experience. The useful economic lives are assessed annually and changed when necessary to
reflect current thinking on their remaining lives.
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SOUTH WESTMOR1AND MULT! ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds

EE

2. Donations and capital grants

ESFA Capital grants

Capita I gra nts
Donations
Dallam School Charitable Trust Donation

Less Boarding Capital Grants

2021 total

3. Funding for Academy's educational operations

DfE / ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DfE / ESFA grants

Pupil Premium

Teachers pay grant
Teachers pension grant
Schools supplementary grant
Other ESFA grants

Other DfE Group grants

Less Boarding exceptional circumstances funding

Other Government grants
Local Authority Funded Statements
Other Local Authority Grants

Exceptional government funding
COVID-19 additional funding (ESFA/DfE)

Catch-up premium
National tutoring programme
Recovery premium grant
Coronavirus exceptional support

COVID-19 additional funding (non - ESFA/DfE)

Mass testing and vaccination fund
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant
Other Coronavirus f unding

Less Boarding Exceptional government funding

School Fund lncome
Catering
Other Educational Operations

Educational Activities and Visits

Community & Outdoor Education

Other

2021 total

4,755
103,000

107,755

551,820

10,000

Year
Ended

3l Aug22
E

551,820

74,755
103,000

Year
Ended

31 Aug 21
c

574,458

103,OO;

561,820 669,575 677,458

- 

(s26,0s7)

707,755 35,763

(s26,0s7)
143,518 677,458

103,000

Unrestricted
Funds

€

574,458 677,458

Restricted
Funds

C

6,108,390

143,336
72,755

34,346
64,772
42,091

Year
Ended

3l Aug22
f

6,108,390

743,336
12,155
34,346
64,772
42,09t

Year
Ended

31 Aug 21
E

s,752,575

125,130
74,322

270,0t6

68,278

L97,748

6,405,090 6,405,090
(2s0,700) (290,700l,

6,774,390 6,114,390

L77,420
26,328

6,230,327

6,230,327

777,420 173,700
26,328 32,9t7

797,748 t46,617

72,360

39,140
58,143
53,007

222,650

2,924
78,542

79,709

2,g2'4
78,542

t9,709

4t,L75

29,730

69,133

409,706

222,650

8,775
36,484

13,196
(1221

360,107

47,775

246,L12

8,327

29,730
246,112

69,133

418,033

2s4,439 6,861,882 7,776,32t 7,077,428

45,430
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Exceptional government f unding
The ocodemy trust hos been eligible to cloim odditionol funding in yeor from government support schemes in response
to the coronovirus outbreok. The funding received is shown obove under "exceptionol government funding".

The academy received f79,709 of funding for the mass testing of staff and students and costs incurred in respect of
this funding are shown in the funds note.

The academy has claimed f2,924in respect of the national tutoring programme. This has been used to cover staffing
costs.

TheacademyreceivediTS,S4}inrespectoftheRecoveryPremiumGrant. Thishasbeenusedtocoverstaffingcosts.

4. Other trading activities year year
Unrestricted Restricted Ended Ended

Funds Funds t! Aug22 31 Aug 21
C

64,L26
8,248

53,258
t25,532

-

125,632

- 92,465

Year Year
Unrestricted Restricted Ended Ended

Funds Funds tl Aug22 3l Aug 21

300
E

300 228
300 228

228 228

Sports Lettings

Other Lettings
lnsurance receipts
lnsurance receipts - Boarding
lnsurance receipts - Trips
Staff insurance receipts
Service Provision

Less Boarding insurance receipts

2021 total

5. lnvestment lncome

Bank lnterest Receivable

2021 total

- 64,726 24,762
8248 

,.,rrt

53,258 64,373
125,632 1.02,768

- 

(10,303)

L25,632 92,465

300
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

6. Expenditure

Expenditure on raising funds

Academy's educational operations
Direct costs
Allocated support costs
Ed uc ational activiti es

and school fund costs

Provision of boarding activities
Direct costs

Allocated support costs

This is stated after charging:
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Operating leases

Fees payable to auditor

7. Expenditure on raising funds

Non Pay Expenditure
Premises Other Costs

Staff
Costs

E

4,M5,669
7,775,42t

5,561,090

292,369
1,519,394

87,679
1,999,442

Year
Ended

3l Aug22
f

\o7,846

4,885,678
3,118,691

87,679
8,092,048

Year
Ended

31 Aug 21
f

112,080

4,620,367
2,703,7L8

28,546
7,352,631

150,613

7,234,435
1,395,049

85,486 22,356

757,640
483,876

641,515

- 151,819 - 151,919

427,399 706,733 253,07L 7,387,203
427,399 858,552 253,077 7,539,022

2021 total

lncoming/outgoing resources for the period

6,073,975 L,522,424 2,L42,5L7 9,738,9L6

5,922,042 1,275,525 L,652,792 8,849,759

Year
Ended

3tAug22
f

673,2U

387,777
13,495

7,62s

8,849,7s9

Year
Ended

31 Aug 21

e.

557,888

233,322
71,275

*:
audit of the financial statements
other assurance services

other services

1,070,Lts 913,125

Unrestricted
Funds

f

15,398

70,088

7,337

774

74,845

4

Year
Restricted Ended

Funds 31 Aug 22

ff

15,398
70,088

7,337

t74
14,845

4

Year
Ended

31 Aug 21

E

10,032

81,090
7,6U

73,274

0

Teaching and educational support staff
Support staff costs

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Rent and rates

Heat and light
Catering
Printing, postage, stationery & photocopying

Advertising
Licence & affiliation fees

Other support costs

2021 total

107,846 707,846

112,080
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE F!NANCIAI STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Charitable Activities

Direct costs - educationa! operations
Teaching and educational support staff
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Books, apparatus and stationery
Staff development
Examination fees
Educationa I consultancy
Academic intervention

Direct costs - boarding

Allocated support costs - educational operations
Support staff costs

Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Maintenance CIF

Professional fees

Legal fees
Cleaning

Rent and rates
Heat and light
lnsurance
Transport
Catering
Printing, postage, stationery & photocopying
Advertising
Licence & affiliation fees

Telephone
Bank charges
Technology costs

Other support costs

Support costs - boarding

Educational activities and school fund costs
Educationa I activities
Educationa I activities staff costs
School Fund expenditure

Support costs - governance

Legal fees
Professional fees

Support staff costs
Net finance costs in respect of

defined benefit pension schemes
Auditors remuneration

Audit of the financial statements
Other costs

Total direct and support costs

2021 total

Restricted
Funds

f
4,445,669

757,640

76,730
8,140

178,248
67,609
72,242

4,885,678
15 1,8 19

5,037,497

993,653 7,715,421. 7,037,372
185,334 185,334 183,46s

Unrestricted
Funds

f

Year Ended

3L Aug22
f

4,445,669
757,640

76,130
8,140

t18,248
67,609
t2,242

Year Ended

31 Aug 21

f.

4,242,L85
151,901

66,252
21,,950

94,558
27,770
15,811

13,196

15,350

28,546

10,38s

83,000

71,275

640

4,885,678 4,620,367
151,819 150,613

5,037,497 4,770,980

12L,768

r.5s,730

3,932+
281,330

37,055

88,623
504,845

42,768
11,619

4,788
58,705

75,695
28,s63

378,s66
4t,703
31,968

12,969

55,678
13,797

12,354
L27,832

14,680

2,720,595
7,397,203

4,707,798

69,133

18,546

37,055

88,623

504,845

42,768
11,619

4,788
58,705
75,695
28,563

378,566

797,433

31,968
L2,969
55,678

t3,797
t2,354

L27,832
18,512

3,001,925

7,387,203

4,389,728

69,13 3

18,546

87,679

16,813

737,76s
301,426

33,521
4,855

38,452
63,198
76,059
32,448

330,272

65,31.6

30,611

23,227
77,554
11,839

6,519

132,058

73,647

2,598,418
7,234,435

3,832,853

12,646

89,000

13,495

7,625
116,766

t2,646

89,000

13,495

t,625
776,766 10s,300

281,330 9,349,740 9,631,070 8,737 ,679

--

s3,682 8,683,997 8,737,679
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

lncluded within resources expended are the following transactions. lndividual transactions exceeding f5,000 are

identified separately:
lndividual

Total items above
2022 f5,000

f Amount Reason

Unrecoverable debts
Financial loss due to fraud
Fixed asset losses

1,776
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

9. Staff costs

Staff costs during the period were:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes
Apprenticeship levy

Supply staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuri ng costs comprise:
Redundancy payments
Severance payments

Other restructuring costs

Teachers

Administration and support
Management

49,394

Severance payments
The academy trust paid two severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bands:

2022
No

0 - f 25,000

f25,001 - f50,000
f50,001 - f100,000
f100,001 - f1s0,000
f150,000+

Special staff severance payments - Non statutory/non<ontractua! staff severance payments
lncluded in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory / nonrontractual severance payments totalling f79,L23
(2021: f 30,951). lndividually, the payments were: f5,723 and f 14,000.

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the period was as follows:

Year
Ended

3L Aug22
f

4,204,480
402,585

7,255,964
5,934

5,868,963
185,889

79,723
6,073,975

79,723

t9,123

2022
No

Year
Ended

31 Aug 21
f

4,205,876
393,022

7,757,307

6,255
5,762,460

110,188

49,394
5,922,042

49,394

202L
No

66

87

8

69

93

8

L701.67
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31AUGUST 2022

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employers pension costs) exceeded f60,000 was:

2022
No

2021
No

f60,001 - f70,000
f70,001 - f80,000
f80,001 - f90,000
f90,001 - f100,000

1

1

2

1

2

:

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as

listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by

key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was:

2022
E

756,060

202L
f

709,673Senior Management Team
Staff Governors

7s6,050 709,673
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SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3l AUGUST 2022

10. C,entral Services

No central services were provided by the multi academy trust to its academies during the period and central
charges arose.

11. Fund Transfurs

During the period the following transfers were made between funds:

Transfers to / from General Annual Grant funds are analysed below:

Fixed asset additions in the year purchased by GAG

Transferred from general annual grant funds to the unrestricted catering
fund to cover the overspend in the current period on the provision of
catering to the academy's pupils.

Net transfer to / (from) General Annual Grant funds

Transfers to/from the general unrestricted funds are analysed below:

Transfer to community and outdoor education to cover overspend
Transfer from unrestricted funds to boarding restricted fund

Net transfer to / (from) unrestricted genera! funds

Transfers to the restricted fixed asset fund analysed below:

Fixed asset additions in the year purchased by GAG

Fixed asset additions in the year purchased by PTA

Proceeds from sale of assets used to purchase additions
Tota! net additions during year

Transfer from the boarding restricted general fund
To cover depreciation charge on finance lease

School contribution on CIF electrical upgrade project 3
School contribution on CIF electrical upgrade project 4

Transfer from school unrestricted funds
Transfer from General Annual Grant funds

School contribution on CIF electrical project
Transfers to / from ESFA condition improvement funds
Fixed asset additions in the year purchased by PTA

Total transfer to restricted fixed assets funds

(43,638)
(31,386)

175,0241

(71.,77L)

(100,000)

ILLL,TtLl

33L,206

For transfers in relation to the restricted fixed asset finance lease fund please refer to the boarding trading account
note to the accounts.

43,638
10,000

53,638

194,3 18

61,600

31,650

(10,000)
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SOUTH WESTMORTAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Tangible Fixed Assets (continued)

Finance lease agreements
lncluded within the net book value of f 11,547,707(2021: f12,767,3471is f1,158,783 l2O2t: ft,484.590) relating
to assets held under finance lease agreements. The depreciation charged to the financial statements in the year in
respect of such assets amounted to f325,807 (2021: t31s,8o7l.

Lease arrangements
The academy has a 15 year lease with the Dallam School Charitable Trust for the use of the Heversham boarding
site, which expires on 23 March 2026.

During the year ended 31 August 2018 the academy entered into a 9 year lease with the Dallam School Charitable
Trust for the use of the Community Centre at the Milnthorpe site, whic h expires on 23 March 202 6.

During the year ended 31 August 2022the academy entered into a 3 year peppercorn lease with the Dallam
School Charitable Trust for the use of Heversham St Peters C of E School, Leasgill, which expires on 14 February
2025.

Treatment of Condition lmprovement Proiects
During the year the academy had various CIF electrical upgrade projects which were funded by ESFA Condition
lmprovement Fund grants. The cost of the projects has been treated as resources expended in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

13. Stock

Catering
Educational supplies
Stationery
Other

Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments
Accrued income
Other debtors

2022
f
3,866

900
4,766

2022
f

524,569
98,991

355,080

574,777
700

1,50s,051

202L
E

2,575

900

3,475

202L
f

349,594
81,848

337,097

533,139

14,6L9
r,4L6,297
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

15. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Taxation and social security
Sundry creditors
EFA creditor
Salix Loans

Accruals
Deferred income
Boarding deposits
Finance leases due within one year

Deferred income

Deferred income at 01 September 2O2t
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2022

Deferred income comprises:
Boarding income in relation to the next financial year
School income for future trips
LA funded statements for September to March in the next financialyear
EFA Rates rebate
Pupil bus passes for the next academic year

Community education Autumn term fees for the next financial year

2022
f

236,477
93,323
42,723
73,697

6,067
267,430
855,522
190,154
794,379

1,953,694

2022
f

702,352
855,522
('702,352)

855,522

646,168
31,650

22,365
155,339

2022
f

702,840
501,990

2021
t

L75,067
99,500
30,481
36,180

4,329
162,756
702,352
225,943
194,3!9

7,630,927

2021
E

7,275,194
702,3s2

17,27s,7841
702,352

508,833
40,672
6,t74

t46,793

855,522 702,352

lncluded within creditors are public benefit concessionary loans (Salix loan) from the ESFAwhich is provided on the
following terms. Repayable by instalments over 8 years with payments in arrears and are interest free.

16. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Salix Loans

Finance leases due after more than one year

202L
E

709,767

696,308
806,075

2021
f.
49,403

604,830

The finance lease is secured over the boarding facilities.

The following aggregate liabilities disclosed under creditors falling due after more than one year are due for
repayment after more than five years from the balance sheet date:

Salix Loans

Fina nce leases

2022
f
48,337
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE F!NANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

17. Funds

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds
Fixed Assets used for
Charitable purposes

Other
Boarding

Finance lease fund
ESFA formula capital fund
ESFA condition improvement fund

Electrical - Milnthorpe
Electrical - Leasgill

Electrical - Boarding House

Electrical - Sports Hall

Non ESFA Capital project

Other Capital Grants

Restricted General Funds
DIE / ESFA Revenue Grqnts

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium
Teachers pay grant
Teachers pension grant
Schools supplementary grant
Other DfE/ESFA Grants

Other Government Gmnts
Local Authority Funded Statements
Other Local Authority Grants

Exceptiona! government fu nding
National tutori ng programme
Recovery premium grant
Mass testing fund
Oth er Coronavirus fundi ng

Boording Fund
School Funds

Othe r trodin g o ctivities
Othe r Educotion ol Ope ration s

Educational Activities and Visits
Community & Outdoor Education
Other

Restricted Pension Reserve Funds
Pension reserve

Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted Funds
General Unrestricted Funds
Designated Sports Fund
Catering Fund

Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Funds

Balance at
01-Sep

f

10,668,058

7,499,279

{.890,627)

351,430
767,233

lncoming
resources

f.

25,763

348,193

177,864
10,000

Resources Gains, Losses Balance at
expended and Transfers 31-Aug

ff.f

11,789,383

526,377

1240,875l,
78,185

363,621

(4,830,000)

(4,466,3791

185,033

769,743

354,776

s61,820

5,8t7,690
143,336

t2,t55
34,346
64,772

42,091.

17L,420
26,328

2,924
18,542
19,709

1,082,37L

29,730

69,133

(342,9741 s3,638
(330,310)

- 194,318
(2s,7631

(347,186)
(1s7,659)
(88,19s) 61,600

(180,685) 31,6s0
- (10,000)

70,378,732
1,168,969
(696,30e)

4,244
3,574

321,598
28,828

77,209,636

709,560

(285,903)

89,369

s13,026

(1,3s9,000)

(84s,974]l

(1,472,7731 331,206

(s,ss9,477!. (7s,0241

(143,336)
( 12,1ss)
(34,346)
(64,772)
(42,O9t)

.777,4201
(26,3281

{.2,9241
(78,s421

(19,709)

(939,831) (187,568)

(69,133)
(1L,777l' 77,77r

409,706 (409,705)
7,944,2s3 (7,s43,9671 (2s0,881)

- (333,000) 3,804,000

7,944,2s3 (7,876,967) 3,5s3,119

777,888
64,L26

(s7,090) (771,777) 19s,720
(s4,s88) - 178,28t

246,7t2 (277,4981 31,386
48s J26 -(3EE6i t8-o,fi 3dl o 1

@ &ee4/ee lr73E,Dl6i-:,aoa-^ooo
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE F!NANCIALSTATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022
17. Funds (continuedl

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2022.

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annua! Grant (GAG) fund
This represents the core funding for the educational activities ofthe school that has been provided to the academy

via the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

Pupi! Premium
This represents funding paid by the DfE to support disadvantaged students in their teaching and learning, with the
aim of improving their attainment and closing the gap with their less disadvantaged peers.

Teachers pay and pension grants

Teachers pay grant is provided to support teacher pay awards. Teachers pension grant is provided to support the
increase in employer contributions to the Teachers' Pension Scheme from September 2019.

Catch-up premium
This represents funding paid by the DfE to support pupils and disadvantaged young people catch up on missed

education because of coronavirus (COVID-19)

LA Funded Statements
This represents funding paid by Cumbria County Council to support a continuum of provision for students with
special educational needs (SEN), learning difficulties and disabilities.

Boarding
This represents funding paid by boarding students for the provision of boarding accommodation and associated

activities.

School Funds

This represents restricted contributions to be extended on specific projects, activities and materials for the benefit
of the pupils.

Educational Activities and visits
This represents mainly parental contributions. Voluntary income and educational income to be expended on

specific projects, activities and materials for the benefit of the pupils.

Community & Outdoor Ed

This represents funding received for the provision of adult learning courses, plus student course fees for full cost

recovery courses and adventure weeks.

Sports tettings
This represents funding paid by external users of the sporting facil ities, a designated fund to be used for the

replacement of sports equipment and the resurfacing of the all weather pitch.

Catering
This represents funding relating to the provision of school meals for students and staff.
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Funds in Deficit
Finance Lease Fund - this fund has been entered into the accounts within the restricted fixed assets funds in order
to show in the fixed assets used for charitable purposes fund the full value of the fixed assets at the year end. The
deficit balance on this fund is equal to the finance lease creditor disclosed in the accounts.

Pension Reserve Fund -thisfund represents the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) at the year
end. The academy has previously entered into an agreement effective from 0L April 2014 to make additional
contributions in addition to normal funding levels. lt is anticipated that the payments will be made over 13 years

from 0l April 2020.

Trustees approved a balanced three-year budget, with healthy reserves for the period to 3tlo8/2025. As a result of
the exceptional circumstances arising from Brexit and the Covid-19 pandemic, the Boarding Fund has been
supported by a transfer of f100,000 from General Unrestricted Funds for the financial period ended 3tl\8l2o22. A

full review of boarding provision is ongoing, including the development of a comprehensive marketing plan to
explore new and additional markets, a staffing restructure, and a review of charges apportioned to boarding. As a

result of these measures, we aim to bring the fund out of deficit by 2026.
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SOUTH WESTMORLAND MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

17. Funds lcontinuedl

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Funds

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds

Fixed Assets used for
Charitable purposes

Other
Boarding

Finance lease fund
ESFA formula capital fund
ESFA condition improvement fund

Boiler - Milnthorpe
External Fabric - Leasgill

Electrical Upgrade - Milnthorpe
Electrical Upgrade - Leasgill

Other Capital Grants

Restricted General Funds

DIE / ESFA Revenue Gronts
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium
Teachers pay grant

Teachers pension grant
Other DfE/ESFA Grants

Other Government Gmnts
Local Authority Funded Statements
Other Local Authority Grants

Exceptional government funding
Catch-up premium

Mass testing fund
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme gn

Other Coronavirus funding
Boording Fund
School Funds

othe r troding octivities

Balance at lncoming Resources Gains, Losses

01-Sep resources expended and Transfers
ffcf

11,003,434
1,831,801

(1,084,94s)

684

155,498

- (33s,366)
- (332,5221

26,390 (26,390)

- (684)

(762,492)
4tL,t7t (133,730)

136,897 (4,520)

Balance at
31-Aug

f

10,658,068
1,499,279
(89O,6271

351,430
76L,233

194,378

6,994
73,989
28,8s6

tL,906,472 s74,4s8 (99s,704)

47,974 5,752,575 15,149,5241
- 12s,130 (12s,130)
- 74,322 (74,3221

- 210,016 (210,016)
- 68,278 (68,278)

- 113,700 (113,700)
- 32,917 (32,9771

- 72,360 (72,3601

- 39,140 (39,140)
- s8,143 (s8,143)
- 53,007 (53,007)

(223,6921 1,129,661 1L,052,526)
85,362 8,175 (15,352)

304,757

(724,774l'

11,789,383

526,3t7

(94,318) {.240,87sI
78,185

Othe r Ed ucation o I Operotio n s

Educational Activities and Visits - 13,196 (13,195)

Community & Outdoor Education - ll22) (27,5211 21,643other reE'6t##+-Tittb-
Restricted Pension Reserve Funds

Pension reserve

Tota! Restricted Funds

Unrestricted Funds

General Unrestricted Funds

Designated Sports Fund

Catering Fund

Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Funds

(4,t72,000) (238,000) (420,000)

386,183

353,621

(4,830,000)

-(q26z,zsa) 
8,101,659 17,GBB,zq3) (617,389) (4,466,3791

200,908 779,877

L85,275 24,762

8,030,299

36,44 (51,359) 74,875

24L,r23 {.L6s,762) (106,758)

@ -T8"845,?srt aAro^oooi

(73,109) {.721,643], 186,033

(47,294) - t68,743

354,776
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17. Funds (continuedl

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balance at 31 August 2021were allocated as follows:

Dallam School

Central Services
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve
Total

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

2022

886,427

202L

778,397

886,427

tL,209,636
(1,359,000)

70,737,063

778,397

17,789,383
(4,830,000)

7,677,780

Teaching and
Educationa! Other

Support Staff Support Staff Educational

Costs Costs Supplies

4,467,067 7,672,908 282,369 2,709,288 9,055,632

282,369 2,709,299 9,065,632

Other Costs

(excluding

dep'n)
f f

8,787,87t

8,L8L,g7L

Total
Funds

E

72,767,347

2,777,435
(7,630,927)

(806,07s)
(4,830,000)

7,677,790

2022

Dallam School
Central Services
Academy Trust

2021 total

4,46L,O57 1,612,909

4,252,277 L,669,825 226,281 2,033,548 8,787,877

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets
Current liabilities
Long term creditors
Pension scheme liability
Total Net Assets

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Analysis of Net Assets Between Funds

Fund balances at 31 August2022arc represented by:

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Current liabilities
Long term creditors
Pension scheme liability
Total Net Assets

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total

Funds Funds Funds Funds
cfff

- 77,547,707 71,547,70r
373,40t 2,375,247 358,2M 3,106,886

- (t,7ss,37sl (1s4,31e) (1,ss3,6e4)
- (102,840) (s01,ee0) (604,830)

373,4OL lg45,g74l 11,209,635 LO,737,063

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset

Funds Funds Funds
fff

- 72,767,347
354,776 1,909,996 572,663

(1,436,608) (1s4,31s)
(709,767) (6s6,308)

: (4,830,000)
354,776 (4,466,3791 11,789,38-
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19. Long-term commitments, including under operating leases 2022
f

At 31 August 2022 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

202L
f

Assets other than land and buildings
Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between two and five years inclusive

Amounts due after five years

Land and buildings
Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between two and five years inclusive

Amounts due after five years

Dallam School has a 15 year lease with the Dallam School Charitable Trust

the Heversham boarding site, which expires on 23 March 2025.

21. Capital Commitments

Contracted for, but not provided for in the financial statements

290,700 290,700
750,975 L,04t,675

-0
7,047,675 7,332,375

(monthly rent of f24,2251 for the use of

380,723
28,429

373,256
372,600

409,152 745,856

lncluded within the above operating lease disclosure is an amount totalling f372,60O 12027:8745,200) in relation to
a contract charge with KT Coaches for the provision of transportation of pupils to and from school (The Academy

collects money from pupils in relation to the sales of bus passes).

20. Commitments Under Finance Leases 2022 2O2l

At 31 August 2022 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable finance

leases was:

2022
f

202L
E

358,244 sL2,663
358,244 512,653
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22. Pension and similar obligations
The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and
Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff,
which is managed by Your Pension Service (YPS) for Cumbria County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial
valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

Contributions payable to the schemes at 31 August and included in creditors were as follows:
2022

C

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Local Government Pension Scheme

The total pension costs to the academy during the year ended 31. August and included in staff costs were as follows:

2021
E

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Local Government Pension Scheme
Local Government Pension Scheme deficit recovery
LGPS current service cost/contributions adjustment

2022
E

640,472

254,225
117,267

2M,OOO

2021
E

637,326
250,456
714,52s
155,000

7,757,307L,255,964

Teaches' Pension Scheme

lntroduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers'
Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All teachers have the
option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary
these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds
provided by Pa rliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance
with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4
years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on
assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of
the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

employer contribution rates set at23.68% of pensionable pay (including a O.O8% administration levy)

total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the
effective date of f2!8,700 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional
investments held at the valuation date) of f 196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of f 22,000 million

The SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current ScApE rate is 2.4%
abovetherateof CPI'assumedrealrateof return is2.4%inexcessof pricesand2%inexcessof earnings.Therate
of real earnings growth is assumed tobe 2.2%.The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is
4.45o/o
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22. Pension and similar obligations (Continued )

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to f640,472 12027: f637,3261.

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has accounted for its

contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above the information

available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The

totalcontribution made forthe year ended 31 August were as follows:
2022

e

254,225

2021
f

250,456E mployer's contributions
E mployees' contri butions
Local Government Pension Scheme deficit recovery
LGPS current service cost/contributions adjustment
Totalcontributions

8L,249 80,273
177,267 714,525
2M,OOO 155,000

696,74L 600,194

The agreed contribution rates for future years are 79.0%f or employers and 5.5% to 8.5% for employees depending on

pay bands.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a Buarantee that, in the event of an

academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

At the balance sheet date the scheme is in deficit. The Academy has previously entered into an agreement effective from

l April 2014 to make additional contributions in addition to normalfunding levels. lt is anticipated that the payments will

be made over t 3 years from L Aprtl2O2O, including f 113,400 in 2020/27, f 116,100 in 2027122 and f 118,900 in 2022123.
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22. Pension and similar obligations lContinued )

The principal actuarial assumptions are:

lnflation assumption (CPl)

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in
life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31
August

2022

2.80%
4.30%
2.90%
4.30%

At 31
August

2021

2.80%
430%
2.90%
7.70%

mortality rates. The assumed

Retiring todoy
Males
Females

Retiring in 20yeors
Males
Females

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - O.l%
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease

CPI rate + 0.1%

CPI rate - 0.1%

Pay growth + 0.1%

At 31

August
2022

22.6
25.3

24.L

27.7

At 31

August
202L

22.7
2s.3

24.3

27.2

Sensitivity analysis

The table below, as produced by Mercer sets out the impact of a small change in assumptions on the defined benefit
obligation.

7,224,000 (135,000) 4,620,000
7,497,000 138,000 5,045,000
1,485,000 126,000 5,134,000
1,235,000 (124,000) 4,s3s,000
1,498,000 139,000 5,044,000
7,223,000 (136,000) 4,621,000
1,370,000 11,000 4,849,000

At 31 August
2022

Deficit Change

At 31 August
202t

Deficit Change

(210,000)

215,000
304,000

(29s,000)

2t4,000
(209,000)

19,000

Fair value at Fair value at
31 August 31 August
2022 2021
f€

1,658,000 1,924,000
700,000 844,000

478,000 373,000
153,000 187,000

t,943,000 1,581,000
4,932,000 4,909,000

(6,2e1,000) (e,73e,000)

The Academy Trust's share of the assets a nd liabilities in the scheme were:

Equities
Government bonds
Other bonds
Property
Cash / liquidity
Other
Total market value of assets

Present value of scheme liabilities
- Funded
- Unfunded

Surplus/(deficit) in the scheme (1,3se,000) (4,830,000)

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any of the Academy's own financial instruments or any
property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Academy.
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22. Pension and similar obligations ( Continued )

The actual return on scheme assets in the period was -f349,000 (2021: €681,000).

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Current service cost (net of employee contributions)
Ad min istrative expenses

Past service (cost)/ga in

Net I nterest cost
Total operating charge

Analysis of other recognised gains and (losses)

Remeasurements (lia bilities)
Remeasurements (assets)

Total charge

Changes in the deficit in the year:

Deficit in scheme at 1 September 2021

Current service cost
Past service cost/(gain )

lnterest cost
Employer contri butions
Actuarial (gain)/loss - Remeasurements
Ad min istration expenses
lnterest income
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
Deficit at 31 August 2022

Changes in the present value of defined benefit
obligations were as follows:

At 01 September 2027

Current service cost
lnterest cost
Employee contribution
Past service cost/(gain )

Actua rial (gains)/losses - remeasurements

Benefits/transfers paid

Benefit obligation at 31 August 2022

Changes in the fair value of Academy's share of scheme assets:

At 01 September 2O2l
Return on plan assets

Ad min istrative expenses

Actuarial gain/(losses) - remeasurements

E mployer contributions
Employee contribution
Benefits/transfers paid

Closing fair value of scheme assets at 31 August 2022

McCloud impact
GMP indexation
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2022
e

(61s,000)
(11,000)

(78,000)
(704,0@)

4,240,000
(436,000)

3,904,(xro

2022
E

4,830,000
51s,000

16s,000
(371,000)

(3,804,000)

11,000
(87,000)

202L
e

(s20,000)
(11,000)

(72,OOOI

-1605^oool

(1,029,000)

609,000
(420,m0)

2021
E

4,772,N0
s20,000

145,000
(36s,000)

420,000
11,000

(73,000)

1,3s9,000

2022
E

9,739,000
61s,000
165,000
81,000

(4,240,000)

(69,000)

6,291,000

2022
e

4,909,000
87,000

(11,000)
(436,000)

371,000
81,000
(5e,000)

4,932,000

4,830,000

2021
E

8,056,000
520,000
145,000
80,000

1,029,000
(91,000)

9,739,000

2021
E

3,884,000
73,000

(11,000)

609,000
355,000

80,000
(91,000)

4,909,000

* Past service cost includes:
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23. Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the Trustees have
an interest.

All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the AFH,

including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where
required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to
connected and related party transactions.

The following related party transactions took place in the period of account:

Related parties
. Dollom School Choritoble Trust.

Mr R J Pirie (member), Mr R Villiers-Smith (trustee), Mr J C Watton (Assistant Headteacher) and Ms R T

Williams (Accounting Officer) who acted for the academy during the period also acted as trustees for Dallam

School Charitable Trust. The trustees have no equitable interest in either entity.

. Settlebeck School
The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for the SWMAT also acts as the CFO for Settlebeck School through a non
profit annual service level agreement.

. The Queen Kotherine Multi Acodemy Trust

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for the SWMAT also acted as the CFO for The Queen Katherine Multi
Academy Trust through a non profit annual service level agreement which ceased 3U0812027.

Expenditure Related Party Transactions
. Dollom School Choritoble Trust.

Dallam School paid a monthly rent of f24,225 for the Counter Part Lease to the Dallam School Charitable
TrustforthepremisesattheHevershamSite. Duringtheyearended3lAugust2022thetotal rentpaidwas
8290,7 00 1202L: f29O,7 oOl.

The rent payable is at arms length, the rental value was calculated by an independent valuer through Lloyds

Bank. None ofthe trustees participated in, nor influenced this valuation.

During the year ended 31 August 2019 Dallam School paid in addition to the monthly rent of f24,225, an

upfront annual rental payment of f290,700 (2027: f290,700) this balance is shown in prepayments at the
year end.

During the year ended 31 August 2022 lhe academy entered into a 3 year peppercorn lease with the Dallam
School Charitable Trust for the use of Heversham St Peters C of E School, Leasgill, which expires on 14
February 2025.

ln entering into the transaction the trust has complied with the requirements of the ESFA's Academies
Financial Handbook.

lncome Related Partv Transactions
. Dollom School Choritoble Trust.

During the year Dallam School Charitable Trust made donations to the South Westmorland Multi Academy
Trust of f103,000 (2021: f703,O00). At the year end the South westmorland Multi Academy Trust owed the
Dallam School Charitable Trust fNil (2021: f Nil).

. Settlebeck School
During the year the SWMAT invoiced Settlebeck school f 31,000 (202t: f 30,000) for financial services.

. The Queen Kotherine Multi Acodemy Trust
During the year the SWMAT invoiced the eueen Katherine Multi Academy Trust €nil (2021; f!9,205) for
financial services.
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24, Related Party Transactions - Trustees' Remuneration and Expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the
academy trust. The principal and other stafftrustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide

undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

Othertrustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses, from the academy in respect oftheir role as

trustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits for the period was as follows:

Ms R Williams (Headteacher and ex-officio trustee):
Remuneration f90,000 to f94,999 (2021: f60,000 to f54,999)
Employer's pension contributions f20,000 to f24,999 (2021: f 10,000 to f 14,999)

The trustees received fNil (2021: fNil) expenses in the year ended 31 August 2022.

25. Trustees' and Officers' lnsurance
ln accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees and

officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The

insurance provides cover up to f5,000,000 (2021: f1,000,000).

The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost. lt is not possible to quantify the trustees and

officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the scheme membership as the overall cover is paid on a per
pupil price. (2021: f.l07l

26. Members Liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding f10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a

member.

27. AgenryArrangements
The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. The receipts and distributions
during the year have been excluded from the statement of financial activities. An amount is included in other
creditors relating to undistributed funds that is repayable to ESFA as shown below:

2022 202t

Fund balance at 01 September2O2L 36,180 33,878

Receipts from ESFA during the year 4,903 7,535

Distributions during the year (6,258) (5,233)

Fund balance at 31 August 2022 34,825 36,180

ln accordance with the guidance in the accounts direction the 15-19 bursary has been treated as an agency

arrangement as the trust is acting as a paying agent for the ESFA.
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28. Academy Boarding Trading Account for the year ended 31 August 2022

lncome
Allocoted to generol boording fund

Fee income
Other income
lnsurance receipts

Exceptional government funding (see note 3)

Allocoted to restricted fixed osset boording fund
Grant income
Gifts in kind (see note 3)

Expenditure
Allocoted to generol boording fund

Staff costs

Maintenance
Finance charge

Rates

Heat & light
Cleaning
Staff development
Catering
Reprographics

Bank charges
Transport
Recharges

Commission

Legal fees
Professional fees

Other
Allocoted to restricted fixed osset boording fund

Maintenance
Legal and professional

Depreciation on finance lease

Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Trading Statement Surplus/ (Deficit) on Boarding

Boarding Funds Reconciliation

Boarding funds surplus/ (deficit) brought fonrard
Trading statement surplus/ (deficit)
Boarding funds before transfers
Assets purchased during the period
Transfer to boarding fund from unrestricted funds
Adj Contribution to CIF project and fund Salix loan
Depreciation charge on finance lease
Boarding funds carried forward

(332,s221
(2ss,387)

Total
€fff

(240,87s) 7,499,279 (890,627) 367,777
742,s40 (73,7341 _ 69,406

Restricted Restricted Finance
General Fixed Asset lease Asset
Funds Funds Funds

100,000
(93,2s0) e3,2s0

Year Ended

3t Aug22
ff

737,04t
54,630

290,700
1,,082,377

s26,057

s26,057

Year Ended

31 Aug 21

ff

1,074,401
44,957

10,303

427,399
134,399

96,382
s8,698
58,355

7,909
790

62,302
385

1,220
74,786
30,807

3,130

6,027
6,722

3L,726

s57,363
85,582

96,382
53,833

64,082
7,739

884
74,374

7,740
2,778

77,484
47,261
23,490

750
1,488

24,0t6

194,3 18

738,204

1,129,66t

(7,0s2,s26r.

100,000

(939,831)
268,881

194,3 18

13s,992

(194,318) _ 194,318

__1a?
* This represents the rental payments across to the Dallam khool charitable Trust during the period.
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29. Post Balance Sheet Events

The academy has obtained a valuation of its LGPS liability at the year end. However, since the year end with further
economic turmoil the trustees believe that the rate of inflation used would be higher if the valuation was to be

performed using this information. No allowance has been made by the actuary in the figures provided in line with
the accounting requirements for events since the year end and the impact of such movements will emerge as part

of the 31 August 2023 figures. The trustees believe obtaining further information of the financial effect on the LGPS

liability to the date of approval of the accounts would not assist the users understanding and the assumptions are

volatile at present so would not be cost effective for the academy trust.
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